
222

Corporate & Democratic Services
www.hastings.gov.uk/meetings

Licensing Sub Committee Agenda
Thursday, 6 August 2015 at 9.30 am
Council Chamber - Town Hall, Queens Road, Hastings TN34 1QR

If you are attending the Town Hall for this meeting, please enter the building via the Community 
Contact Centre entrance.

For further information, please contact Emily Horne on 01424 451719 or email 
ehorne@hastings.gov.uk 

Page No.

Members of the Licensing Sub Committee to sit on this hearing 
are:

Councillors Batsford, Charlesworth, Roberts, Sinden, Street 
and Webb.

1.  Appointment of Chair for this meeting
2.  Apologies for Absence
3.  Minutes of the meeting held on  26 May and 8 June 2015 1 - 12
4.  Declarations of Interest
5.  Notification of any additional urgent items
6.  Application for a premises licence: Grand Elektra,

53-57 Robertson Street, Hastings
(Corporate Director, Environmental Services)

15 - 72

7.  Application to review a premises licence: Moscwichka,
1A Pevensey Road, St. Leonards on Sea
(Corporate Director, Environmental Services)

75 - 122

8.  Additional urgent items (if any)

Public Document Pack



2



LICENSING SUB COMMITTEE

26 MAY 2015

LSC. 1

Present: Councillors Batsford, Charlesworth and Roberts

1. APPOINTMENT OF CHAIR FOR THIS MEETING 

In accordance with the terms of reference of the Licensing Committee, the Chief Legal 
Officer invited nominations for the appointment of Chair for the duration of the 
meeting.  Councillor Charlesworth moved that Councillor Roberts should take the 
Chair.  This was seconded by Councillor Batsford. 

RESOLVED (unanimously) that Councillor Roberts be appointed as Chair 
for the duration of the meeting.

2. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

Absence was noted for the reserve member, Councillor Beaney.     

3. MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 8 SEPTEMBER 2014 

RESOLVED – That the minutes of the meeting held on 8 September 2014
be approved and signed by the Chair as a true record.

4. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

None.

5. NOTIFICATION OF ANY ADDITIONAL URGENT ITEMS 

None.

6. APPLICATION FOR A PERSONAL LICENCE AS A RESULT OF A POLICE 
OBJECTION NOTICE 

Councillor Roberts set out the procedure that the Sub-Committee would adopt (in 
accordance with Standard Practice), all parties confirmed they understood this.

The Corporate Director, Environmental Health, submitted a report on an application for 
a personal licence for Mr Riza Dogan, with a police objection under the licensing 
objective for the “prevention of Crime and Disorder”.  Mr Brown, Licensing Manager, 
presented the report.

Sergeant Vokins from Sussex Police Licensing Team stated the police had objected to 
the personal licence, based on the offence ‘wounding with intent to do grievous bodily 
harm’.  He explained that this was the highest level of assault; Dogan was convicted 
and sentenced to 5 years of imprisonment in 2005.  Convictions of more than 4 years 
are never spent or removed from a criminal record. He concluded that the granting of 
a Personal Licence would undermine the Crime Prevention objective and that he had 

Public Document Pack

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



LICENSING SUB COMMITTEE

26 MAY 2015

LSC. 2

severe concerns that someone who had a background of GBH would be authorised to 
sell alcohol.  

Mr Dogan, applicant was present.  In his submission he said he was aware that when 
he made the application his conviction was not spent, however he committed the 
crime over 10 years ago and had changed as a person.  He said that he served the 
sentence and that no further crimes had occurred in or around Hastings.  Furthermore, 
he said he upheld crime prevention in everyday life which proved he could uphold the 
rules for holding an alcohol licence. He said his interests were towards off licence and 
not an open public licence. This licence, he said, would give him a new avenue in life 
and enable him to pursue his business interests.  He suggested that if he were to be 
granted a licence, members may wish to add conditions to it.  

Sergeant Vokins sought clarification from Mr Dogan about the circumstances of his 
conviction.   Mr Dogan explained the circumstances.

Members asked questions of Mr Dogan.

Mr Brown, Licensing Manager, clarified that a Personal Licence could be used in any 
profession and could be used on trade and off trade.  If successful, he said the 
Personal Licence would last for ever and could be taken anywhere in the UK by the 
applicant.  

The Chief Legal Officer advised the Committee that they must have regard to the 
Secretary of State Guidance, June 2014, Para 41, in that when the applicant 
demonstrated the crime took place long ago, they must no longer have the propensity 
to offend.  The licensing objectives must not be undermined.

Sergeant Vokins, expressed his concern regarding the seriousness of the offence, 
which he said undermined the licensing objectives. 

In his summary, Mr Dogan said he had a business interest which would benefit the 
town and that he would like to integrate into society as a business owner. 

RESOLVED (unanimously) that the application be refused for the following 
reasons:-

The Committee have listened very carefully to all of the evidence before it.  
Whilst it recognises that the applicant is trying to turn his life around, the 
Committee was not completely satisfied that the applicant no longer has a 
propensity to re-offend.  

The Committee do not consider that it is appropriate to grant the application on 
the basis that doing so would undermine the crime and prevention of objective.  

The Committee have had regard to its own policy and the guidance issued by 
the Secretary of State.

Page 2



LICENSING SUB COMMITTEE

26 MAY 2015

LSC. 3

7. ADDITIONAL URGENT ITEMS (IF ANY) 

None.

(The Chair declared the meeting closed at 10.30 am)

Page 3



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 4



LICENSING SUB COMMITTEE

8 JUNE 2015

LSC. 1

Present: Councillors Charlesworth, Roberts, Sinden and Webb

8. APPOINTMENT OF CHAIR FOR THIS MEETING 

In accordance with the terms of reference of the Licensing Committee, the Chief Legal 
Officer invited nominations for the appointment of Chair for item 13, Zar Zar Bar.  
Councillor Charlesworth moved that Councillor Roberts should take the Chair.  This 
was seconded by Councillor Sinden. 

RESOLVED (unanimously) that Councillor Roberts be appointed as Chair 
for the duration of the meeting.

9. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

None.

10. MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 12 JANUARY 2015 

RESOLVED – That the minutes of the meeting held on 12 January 2015
be approved and signed by the Chair as a true record.

11. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

None.

12. NOTIFICATION OF ANY ADDITIONAL URGENT ITEMS 

None.

13. APPLICATION FOR THE REVIEW OF A PREMISES LICENCE: ZAR ZAR 
BAR, 91-92 QUEENS ROAD, HASTINGS 

Councillor Roberts set out the procedure that the Sub-Committee would adopt (in 
accordance with Standard Practice), all parties confirmed they understood this.

The Corporate Director, Environmental Health, submitted a report on an application for 
the review of a premises licence at Zar Zar Bar, 91-92 Queens Road, Hastings, as a 
result of a police objection under the licensing objective for the “Prevention of Crime 
and Disorder”.  Mr Brown, Licensing Manager, presented the report.

Some restricted material received from Sussex Police, containing witness statements 
and a premises action plan, which was not part of the formal documentation for the 
agenda, was circulated to the committee to read.

The Chair adjourned the meeting to give the Police Barrister, who had been delayed, 
time to arrive for the meeting. 

Mr Lewis, applicant, requested an adjournment.  The Police were opposed to the 
adjournment.  The Committee refused Mr Lewis’s request to adjourn the meeting.  

Public Document Pack

Page 5



LICENSING SUB COMMITTEE

8 JUNE 2015

LSC. 2

Mr Savill, Barrister for Sussex Police, made his submission on the grounds of the 
‘Prevention of Crime and Disorder’.  He said the Police had accumulated a 
considerable amount of evidence in support of their application.  He said there were 
three common themes which were: poor management; breaches of conditions and 
persistent drunkenness leading to violence from either people coming into the 
premises drunk or becoming drunk whilst inside the premises. He referred to the 
incidents listed on page 19 of the agenda, no’d: 1,7,10 and 11.  As a consequence of 
these incidents, he explained that a number of meetings had taken place with the 
licensee and an action plan was produced in February 2015.  It was noted that on 8th 
April 2015 the new DPS had not been appraised of the action plan.  He went on to say 
that Mr Lewis had a significant conviction and there had been a number of serious 
incidents at Zar Zar Bar in 2015.  He believed the licensing objectives had been 
seriously undermined and the licensing objective ‘The Prevention of Public Nuisance’ 
disregarded. Therefore, the Police recommended the suspension of licence for four 
weeks to:

 Provide time for the management to put in place new operating procedures;
 Provide management time to fully instruct staff on the requirements of the 

Licensing Act 2003 and on crime scene preservation;
 To break the relationship between the current clientele and the premises to 

instigate a new ambience within the premises;
 To act as a deterrent to this and other premises in the area that this type of 

behaviour will not be tolerated by the Licensing Authority; and
 To break the cycle of crime and disorder which appears to be the normal 

practice within the premises.

And that the operating times for the premises be amended and conditions imposed 
as per page 22 and 23 of the agenda.

Mr Savill went on to say that the operating times needed to be amended because of 
the drunkness which regularly occurred after midnight and most of the conditions they 
recommended are best practice in a licensing establishment.  In regard to Condition 4, 
Security Industry registered doorstaff, he said they do not need to be on duty during 
the day, ideally from 9pm till the terminal hour to stop people who are drunk getting 
into the premises.

Mr Lewis asked if anyone had appeared in court following the incidents.  Mr Savill 
explained that a number of serious violent offences had taken place, and that the Zar 
Zar Bar stood head and shoulders above any other premises in the town in regard to 
these kind of incidents.  

Mr Ballam, Environmental Protection Officer, supported the Police application for the 
review of the premise license. He referred to the history of the premises in relation to 
noise complaints as detailed in his submission on page 37, Appendix D of the agenda.  
He was aware that a number of further incidents relating to the licensing objectives 
had occurred and that there had been a lack of compliance and poor management 
shown by Mr Lewis in respect of the licensing objectives, primarily the Prevention of 
Crime and Disorder and the Prevention of Public Nuisance.

Page 6



LICENSING SUB COMMITTEE

8 JUNE 2015

LSC. 3

Mr Scrase, Senior Licensing Officer, made his submission, he referred to the history of 
the premises as listed in his memo on page 39, Appendix D of the agenda.  He said 
the conditions were part of the initial application prior to Mr Lewis transferring the 
premises license and changing the DPS on 23rd July 2012.  Regarding the recent 
issues concerning non-compliance, he said he received an application on 4th June to 
transfer the licence from Mr Lewis and to re-name the premises as Bar 1066.  He said 
he was aware that Mr Lewis attended the offices on Friday 5th June to collect the 
licence.  He concluded by saying that there had been an ongoing continued lack of 
compliance and poor management of the premises whilst Mr Lewis held the licence.  
As such he was in full support of the review instigated by the police.

Mr Brown read out a further representation from a local interested party, Mrs Waugh 
of Fountain Music Bar, 93 Queens Road, Hastings, in which she comments that none 
of the four licensing objectives were being adhered to.  In summary, her letter referred 
to noise outside the premises till 3am; she was concerned about aggressive drunk 
customers and fighting outside and lack of management.  She felt the situation had 
become intolerable and was ruining the quality of her life.

Mr Lewis, applicant said he agreed that a lot of what the police had stated was right 
and steps had been taken to move forward.  It was only during the last 12/18 months 
there had been issues, especially as he had not been there to control matters.  He 
said he went to the Crown Court on 5th May 2015 regarding a previous incident.  He 
had also got the premises rebranded Bar 1066.   He went onto say that they employed 
8 staff for 16hrs per week. The staff he said, were inexperienced, this was their 1st 
step back into work.  Furthermore, he was refurbishing the premises at a cost of 
£10,000 and would install a proper kitchenette.  As for Conditions 1-6, he said he had 
brought CCTV equipment.  Mr Lewis referred to the conditions as follows:- Condition 2 
- All staff had been informed on how to request ID and anyone without a pass who 
does not look 21 or over is not allowed in.   Condition 3 – The refusals register has 
been implemented. Two weeks ago they joined the Bar Watch scheme.  Condition 5 – 
The incident book is behind the bar.  Condition 6 – Have stamped down on preventing 
patrons carrying glasses and bottles outside the premises and have put a table inside 
the window to facilitate this.  Regarding Condition 4 - Security – He explained that on 
a Monday and Thursday the bar had 4 or 5 people inside and it would not be 
necessary to have 2 security doorstaff outside, when the premise was packed out it 
could only hold 25 people.  He suggested 1 security guard working from 9pm to 
2am/3am on Friday and Saturday’s.  With 8 members of staff he would not be able to 
justify the additional costs. Having already been closed for a month he wished to re-
open as a café bar.  The DPS was more ‘on the job’ and would take responsibility for 
serving customers.  The café bar would have a different environment.

Mr Brown sought clarification from Mr Lewis on the café bar, he said the conditions on 
the premise licence state it should be operated as a café. Mr Lewis said he had been 
providing food, but they only had a small kitchenette, so were limited on amount of 
food they could provide, however they had been making an effort to serve more food.  

Mr Brown asked Mr Lewis if he accepted that the issues had been ongoing for four 
years and why in the last two years he paid his fees late.  Mr Lewis said it was down 

Page 7



LICENSING SUB COMMITTEE

8 JUNE 2015

LSC. 4

to forgetfulness, he had been distracted and had taken his “eye off the ball”.  He said 
he wanted to make sure the bar survived.

Members sought clarification from Mr Lewis on the bar plan.  Mr Lewis said he would 
cut the size of the bar down and enlarge the kitchen to provide food and wine.   The 
bar would be replaced with tables. He would create a rustic look, patrons would sit 
down rather than stand up.  The kitchen would join the bar and ventilation would be 
provided.

In his summary, Mr Brown explained that the review had been brought by the police 
because the licensing objectives had been undermined.  

Mr Ballam, re-stated that his representation was on the prevention of noise, he 
expressed his concern about noise problems and that it would need to be monitored.

Mr Scrase, said that he sent Mr Lewis new forms to change the ownership for Bar 
1066.  Furthermore, it is a procedural requirement that he submit a new layout for the 
internal alterations.

Mr Lewis said the refurbishment works will give the premises a new ambience and the 
noise levels will drop.  

In his summary, Mr Savill said the licensing objectives had been severely undermined, 
the premises was head and shoulders above the other premises in Hastings in regard 
to problems.  He said the Police were concerned that nothing had changed.  Sergeant 
Vokins, in his witness statement had said “he had no confidence in the ability of those 
involved in the running and operation of the premises to make any genuine or 
sustained improvements”.  Furthermore, Mr Lewis had not challenged the evidence. 
The problems at the premises existed long before the incident on 16th February 2015.  
An action plan was drawn up on 5th February, but the incidents continued.  The 
conditions on the licence are that the premises operate as a café not as a bar; he said 
Mr Lewis referred to 8 beer pumps which is not consistent with a café.  The conditions 
have been breached for 4 years. Furthermore, it is a condition on the existing licence 
that the licence holder is active in Bar Watch.   

RESOLVED (unanimously) that the Sub-Committee accepts the evidence 
provided in support of the application and has allowed the review subject to the 
following conditions:-

The Committee agree all of the requests of the police on pages 22 and 23 of the 
report including the conditions, with the exception of condition 4 which shall 
read:

“One Security Industry Authority registered doorstaff to be on duty at the 
premises from 22:00hrs until all customers have left the premises”.

This includes the revised opening times and hours of licensable activities and 4 
weeks suspension starting today 08.06.2015.  

Page 8



LICENSING SUB COMMITTEE

8 JUNE 2015

LSC. 5

The Committee have had regard to its own policy and the guidance issued by 
the Secretary of State.

14. APPLICATION FOR A PREMISES LICENCE:  GRAND ELEKTRA, 53-57 
ROBERTSON STREET, HASTINGS 

In accordance with the terms of reference of the Licensing Committee, the Chief Legal 
Officer invited nominations for the appointment of Chair for item 14, Grand Elektra.  
Councillor Roberts moved that Councillor Sinden should take the Chair.  This was 
seconded by Councillor Charlesworth. 

RESOLVED (unanimously) that Councillor Sinden be appointed as Chair 
for the duration of the meeting.

Councillor Sinden set out the procedure that the Sub-Committee would adopt (in 
accordance with Standard Practice), all parties confirmed they understood this.

The Corporate Director, Environmental Health, submitted a report on an application for 
a premises licence at Grand Elektra, 53-57 Robertson Street, Hastings, as a result of 
representations received under the licensing objective for the “Prevention of Crime 
and Disorder and the Prevention of Public Nuisance”.  Mr Brown, Licensing Manager, 
presented the report.

Some additional supporting information from Invest Nightlife had been distributed to 
the committee members prior to the meeting, which was not part of formal 
documentation for the agenda.

Mr Brown explained that the representations from responsible authorities had reduced 
from four to three.  East Sussex Fire and Rescue Service had withdrawn their 
representation.

Mr Savill, Barrister for Sussex Police said the Council Special Saturation Policy 
(Cumulative Impact) applies to all applications in the Town centre, the presumption is 
in favour of refusal, therefore it is for the applicant to demonstrate that there will be no 
negative cumulative impact, therefore it is not relevant on how well run the premises 
is.  

Mr Jerome Silva, legal representative for the applicant was present, he asked 
questions of officers regarding the previous licence to which he was reminded that the 
review was about the negative cumulative impact on the existing premises.  Mr Savill 
added that the policy applied to all applications and did not need comparison with 
other premises; it would be arbitory to identify an individual premise.  The Chief Legal 
officer confirmed that it was for the applicant to demonstrate there would be no 
negative cumulative impact.    

Mr Ballam, Environmental Protection Officer, referred to the history of general noise 
complaints late at night in the area as detailed in his submission on page 103 of the 
agenda, Appendix C. He raised concern regarding the lack of detail in the application; 
the extended opening hours and potential for noise. He commented on the Special 

Page 9



LICENSING SUB COMMITTEE

8 JUNE 2015

LSC. 6

Saturation Policy and the fact that the applicant had failed to demonstrate that there 
would be no negative cumulative impact.

Mr Silva asked Mr Ballam if sound proofing the link corridor between 53 & 54 
Robertson Street would alleviate his concerns.  Mr Ballam said the complaints 
received related to the doors.  Mr Silva went on to ask if the later licensing hours 
would lead to a gradual dispersal of people and easier to control the crowd.  Mr 
Ballam said there would still be sufficient noise breakout.

Mr Scrase, Senior Licensing Officer, explained the history of the previous premises.  
He said he had concerns regarding the link corridor and public safety and the lack of 
information regarding daytime use of the premises. He believed that patrons of other 
premises which closed earlier would move onto Grand Elektra and that it would have a 
negative effect if they dispersed 400 people into the town centre. He said he had had 
a meeting with the applicants to make them aware, so they could address the issues.  
He believed the town centre saturation policy had not been addressed.

Members sought further clarification on the history of the premises.

Mrs Nicholson, resident in Cambridge Road, expressed concern regarding fighting, 
loud music and doors left open. She said the noise had been intolerable.
  
Mr Oliver Ibrahim, applicant, said he said been working in the industry since he was 
18yrs and had set up his own cocktail business. Between himself and his business 
partner who operates Karma Security, they had 30 years knowledge and experience. 
He would have day to day control of the premises.  He said they wanted to address 
the concerns and to contribute culturally, not just run as a nightclub.  

Mr Silva asked Mr Ibrahim why he wanted to change the premises hours.  Mr Ibrahim 
said it would create a slower rate of dispersal in which people could disperse over a 
longer period of time.  Peak capacity he said is always 1 hour before closing hour.  He 
explained that if the premises closed prematurely, people would not want to go home 
and will look for other smaller venues.  He said he would be running daytime events at 
the premises such as corporate events to give a broader range of activities.  He 
explained the measures they had taken to improve the premises, but measures 
concerning ID could be tightened up to satisfy the committee if necessary.

Mr Brown asked Mr Ibrahim why they had asked for specific hours.  In response Mr 
Ibrahim said he needed later hours, the business would not survive on the earlier 
operating hours. He spoke of the other premises competing for trade in the town.

Mr Brown verified matters concerning tables outside the premises, and explained that 
they were controlled by East Sussex County Council under a separate licence.  Tables 
were not permitted outside the premises after 11pm.  He went on to say that the 
Special Saturation Policy came into effect in 2007 under a review following major 
crime and disorder in the town. They identified a concentration of licensing premises in 
the town centre and brought in 3 cumulative impact zones. The evidence was 
provided by police data; local residents and the health body, amongst others.   He said 
it was for the applicant to prove there will be no negative cumulative impact.

Page 10



LICENSING SUB COMMITTEE

8 JUNE 2015

LSC. 7

Mr Savill said it was not a comparative exercise of the premises that previously 
existed. The test was not “will there be more negative cumulative impact”, but “will the 
grant of the licence give rise to negative cumulative impact”.  A comparatively large 
night club will give rise to cumulative impact.  He said the Secretary of State was clear 
in its guidance about people beyond a licenced premises. The cumulative impact is 
about people who have left the premises, for example people get in taxis, people hang 
around in the town centre.  The cumulative impact is not premise specific. Therefore, 
the internal steps on how the premises is run does not address cumulative impact.  No 
matter how well structured the operating structure, it does not address people beyond 
control of premises.  He recommended the application be refused. 

Mr Paul Mandy, Business Partner and owner of Karma Security said he managed the 
area for 20 years and owned a premise in Hastings. He assisted the police with 
dispersals but felt that issues were not just about dispersal within the club. 

In his summary, Mr Ballam said he was concerned about the cumulative impact and 
was worried about noise breakout from music and patrons.

Mr Silva said he did not agree with the Police’s interpretation of the saturation policy. 
He said there was a link between the establishment and how it was run and how 
people behave in the street.   He felt that Mr Ibrahim had given clear evidence based 
and informed examples of how the business would operate, such as the dispersal 
policy, slowing down the music, increasing the lights 1 hour before closing time, ID 
scanning.  The premises was not just a nightclub, but would be a multi-faceted 
premises for residents, youth groups etc, offering courses during the day.  He said it 
was not about competing with other premises, but about the Police connection with 
anti-social behaviour.  

RESOLVED (unanimously) that the Sub-Committee refuse the application for the 
following reasons:-

The Committee have listened very carefully to all submissions.  The applicant 
stated various control measures which did not form part of this application.  
Therefore, we have no alternative but to refuse this application as the applicant 
has failed to demonstrate in its operating schedule that there will be no negative 
cumulative impact on one or more of the four licensing objectives. 

The Committee have had regard to its own policy and the guidance issued by 
the Secretary of State.

15. ADDITIONAL URGENT ITEMS (IF ANY) 

None.

(The Chair declared the meeting closed at. 4.43 pm)

Page 11



LICENSING SUB COMMITTEE

8 JUNE 2015

LSC. 8
Page 12



Licensing Sub Committee Procedures
1. The Chair’s Introduction and Explanation of the Procedure, which will be followed 

 Introduce Members and Officers and invite the applicant, objectors and any 
representatives to the table, asking them to introduce themselves.

 Explain that the hearing will follow a procedure, and that is that the Officer will make his 
report, followed by the Consultees such as the Police and then the Objectors and finally 
the Applicant. There will be an opportunity for questions. Members may ask for 
clarification from the Licensing Officer and Summaries may be given if required.

 Ask if the Parties received the report and are ready to proceed. 
  If any Party to the hearing fails to attend ask Members to consider whether to adjourn 

the hearing or to proceed in the Party’s absence.

The Hearing of each application will then follow the order set out below:

2. Summary of report by Licensing Manager / Officer.

3. Statutory Consultees (eg Police, Fire Service, Environmental Health) submissions on 
the application.  
Any questions for Statutory Consultees from
 Applicant / Representative?
 Objectors?
 Officers?
 Members?

4. Other Objectors each make submissions on the application.  
Any questions for Objectors from
 Applicant / Representative?
 Statutory Consultee?
 Officers?
 Members?

5. Applicant / Representative make submissions on the application / call any witnesses. 
Any Questions for Applicant / Representative / Witnesses from
 Statutory Consultees and Objectors?
 Officers?
 Members?

6. Do Members require any clarification from the Licensing Manager / Officer?
If clarification given, questions on clarification only from:
 Applicant / Representative?
 Statutory Consultees and Objectors?
 Members?

7. Summaries (if required)
 Licensing Manager / Officer summing up 
 Statutory Consultees and Objectors’ summing up 
 Applicant/Representative summing up 

8. Decision Making
 Members retire to discuss the application, propose and second a recommendation and 

vote on this. 
 They may take legal advice from the Legal Advisor.  The Legal Advisor will advise the 

Parties of any legal advice given to the sub-committee.  No other person may retire with 
the Sub-committee.

 The decision is announced by the Chair giving full reasons for the decision, together with 
any conditions, which are to be attached to the grant of the licence or the reasons for a 
refusal of the application. 

Page 13

Agenda Annex



This page is intentionally left blank



 Report Template v28.0

Report to: Licensing Sub-Committee

Date of Meeting: 6th August 2015

Report Title: Application for Premises licence. Grand Electra, with 
representation. 

Report By: Mike Hepworth
Head of Environmental Services

Purpose of Report

To consider the application for a new premises licence as a result of representations 
received.
Responsible Authorities.One.  
.

Recommendation(s)

1. Members instructions requested.

Reasons for Recommendations

The Licensing Act 2003 requires a licensing sub committee to consider such 
applications when appropriate representations have been made. The decision reached 
at the sub committee can be subject to appeal by any party to the hearing who is 
aggreived by the decision.

Page 15

Agenda Item 6



Report Template v28.0

 

Introduction

1.0 Background History

1. On 7th February 2005 the Licensing Act 2003 came into force for all local 
authorities, marking the practical commencement of the Government’s new liquor 
licensing regime. 

2. On the 23rd June 2015 Hastings Borough Council received an application for a new 
premises licence for the ground floor and basement of 53 - 57 Robertson Street, 
Hastings from Mr Oliver Ibrahim, a Director of Invest Nightlife Ltd, GPG House, 
Walker Avenue, Wolverton Mill, Milton Keynes. MK12 5TW, made under section 17 
the Licensing Act 2003. (Attached at Appendix A).

3. This premises is a new venture but is on the site of the old West Exit Club and 
Electric Stag Bar in Robertson Street, those licences having lapsed, following the 
operating company going into voluntary liquidation in March 2015. (Map attached at 
Appendix B.)

4. This is the second application for these premises, the first was heard at licensing 
sub-committee on the 8th June 2015 and refused.  The applicant did not appeal 
this decision.

5. Subsequently there has been a site meeting at the premises attended by the 
applicants, environmental health and the Police.  The meeting included detailed 
practical and constructive discussions about the potential operational management 
of the club premises in relation to the 4 licensing objectives.  As a result the 
application for consideration at this hearing is substantially different to the one 
considered on 8th June.

6. The hours of operation have been reduced and there is far more detail in relation to 
how the applicant proposes to address the 4 licensing objectives.

7. The premise is located within Area 1 (Town centre) of the Council Special 
Saturation Policy (Cumulative Impact).

2.0 Application 

8. The application requests the following: 

9. To have performance of plays, films, live music, recorded music, dance, anything 
similar to music and dance and supply of Alcohol, Sunday to Thursday 11.00 hrs to 
02.00hrs, Friday and Saturday 11.00hrs to 03.00hrs.

10. To have late night refreshment, Sunday to Thursday 23.00hrs to 02.00 hrs, Friday 
and Saturday 23.00hrs to 03.00hrs.

11. To have opening hours of the premises, Sunday to Thursday 08.00 hrs to 02.30hrs, 
Friday and Saturday 08.00hrs to 03.30hrs.

Page 16



Report Template v28.0

12. In addition, under all licensable activities, to have the hours for Sunday's preceding 
bank holiday Mondays extended, the terminal hour of activities increased to 
03.00hrs and venue closing extended to 03.30hrs.

13. .When submitting an application for a licence under the Licensing Act 2003 the 
applicant is asked to describe what steps they intend to take to promote the four 
licensing objectives:-

 the prevention of crime and disorder,

 public safety, 

 prevention of public nuisance,

 protection of children from harm.

14. In this case the applicant has made a full amended declaration on the pages in 
section M of the application.(See appendix A)

3.0     Consultation 

15. The Licensing Act 2003 requires an applicant to advertise their application once in 
a local newspaper and on the premises by way of an approved notice for 28 days 
to allow for representations to be made, this has been done. 

16. Copies of the application are required to be served on a list of responsible 
authorities at the same time as placing the application before the local authority, 
this has been done. This process has resulted in one representation being received 
by the Authority. 

17. A representation has been received from Chief Inspector Phelps, Hastings Police 
Commander.  He comments on the application and the history of the premises 
including on the new layout which combines two premises that were separately 
licenced in the past. He also comments on the meeting held on the site meeting 
held on 18th June 2015.

18. He acknowledges the commitment by the applicant to address the concerns raised 
at that meeting and the changes made to facilitate this application. He comments 
that the application has been well thought through but feels that it is inevitable that 
premises of this nature will have some impact on the cumulative impact on the town 
centre saturation zone and therefore they invite the subcommittee to refuse the 
application. I consider this a valid representation under the licensing objective 
(Prevention of Crime and Disorder)  (Attached Appendix C.)

19. A report has been received from Mr Bryant, Environmental Protection Officer 
(Pollution), he comments on the past problems of the area and the fact that the 
town centre has presented an unacceptable noise level to residents late at night. 
He comments on this new application and the engagement with the applicants 
since the last hearing, he considers the amendments to the application to be 
positive and does not therefore make a formal representation. (Attached Appendix 
C).

Page 17



Report Template v28.0

20. Local residents made a representation against the previous application as they 
were concerned about potential nuisance.  However, they have been consulted in 
relation to the fresh application, and have not made a representation against it.

21. The Special Saturation Policy (Cumulative Impact) is contained within the Council's 
Licensing Policy; it states "Each application will be considered on its own merit. 
Where no representations are received any application will be granted in terms 
consistent with the operating schedule. Where relevant representations are 
received in relation to applications for the grant of a new premise licence, club 
premise certificate or provisional statement; there will be a presumption against the 
grant of such licence or certificate unless the applicant, in the operating schedule, 
can rebut the presumption that the granting of such a licence or certificate would 
undermine the licensing objectives." Applicants are advised to seek legal advice if 
making an application for a licence in a Special Saturation Area. 

22. In addition, the applicants have included several letters/ emails of support with their 
application. Whilst this does not form part of the laid down licensing process they 
are attached for information. (Appendix D)

4.0 Legal Considerations

23. The Licensing Act 2003 is now the only legislation that allows premises to be 
licensed for either the sale of Alcohol or the supply of regulated entertainment. 

24. If a relevant representation to an application is made by either a responsible 
authority or an interested party and no compromise can be reached between the 
parties, a hearing must be held. 

25. The Department for Culture, Media and Sport has issued guidance under Section 
182 of the Licensing Act 2003.  This guidance is provided to Licensing Authorities 
to assist them in carrying out their functions.  

26. All members of the Licensing Committee have been supplied with copies of the 
DCMS Government guidance and the Hastings Borough Council Statement of 
Licensing Policy.

27. Human rights considerations must be taken into account fully in balancing licensing 
issues, in particular, Article 1 of the first protocol and Article 8. Article 1 relates to 
the protection of property and the peaceful enjoyment of possessions and property.    
Article 8 relates to the right to respect for private and family life, home and 
correspondence.  These are however qualified rights and can be deprived of “in the 
public interest”.  Interference is permissible if what is done:-

28. Has its basis in law;

29. Is necessary in a democratic society to fulfil a pressing need or pursue a legitimate 
aim;

30. Is proportionate to the aims being pursued; and, 

31. Is related to the prevention of crime; or, the protection of public order or health.

Page 18



Report Template v28.0

32. If members chose to refuse the application in full or in part, the applicant has a right 
of appeal to the Magistrates’ Court. There is also a right of appeal to conditions 
imposed as a result of the hearing by any person affected by the decision. 

5.0 Options

33.  Grant the application in full

34.  Grant part of the application

35. Grant the application with conditions relevant to the application

36. Refuse the application.

Wards Affected

Castle

Policy Implications

Please identify if this report contains any implications for the following:

Equalities and Community Cohesiveness No
Crime and Fear of Crime (Section 17) Yes
Risk Management No
Environmental Issues Yes
Economic/Financial Implications No
Human Rights Act Yes
Organisational Consequences No
Local People’s Views No
Anti-Poverty No

Additional Information

Appendix A. Application for licence.
Appendix B. Map of area.
Appendix C. Police represention and Environmental Report.
Appendix D. Letters of Support.

Officer to Contact

Bob Brown. Licensing Manager
bbrown@hastings.gov.uk
01424 783249

Page 19



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 21



Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



Page 25



Page 26



Page 27



Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



Page 31



Page 32



Page 33



Page 34



Page 35



Page 36



Page 37



Page 38



Page 39



Page 40



Page 41



Page 42



Page 43



Page 44



Page 45



Page 46



Page 47



Page 48



Page 49



Page 50



Page 51



Page 52



Page 53



Page 54



Title:
Scale: 1:2500

Appendix B

Date: 15 / 5 / 2015

This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material w ith the permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller of Her Majesty's 

Stationery Office © Crow n Copyright. Unauthorised reproduction inf ringes Crow n copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. 

Licence Number: 100021328 2012.

Page 55



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 57



Page 58



Page 59



Page 60



Page 61



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 63



Page 64



Page 65



Page 66



Page 67



Page 68



Page 69



Page 70



Page 71



This page is intentionally left blank



Licensing Review Procedures - 2015

Licensing Review Procedures
1. Introductions

 Chair introduce Members and Officers.  Invite applicant / Licence Holder / 
representatives to table.  Ask to introduce themselves.

 Chair explain procedure.  Ask if Parties received report and ready to proceed. 
 In the event that any Party to the hearing fails to attend Members consider whether to 

adjourn the hearing or to proceed in the Party’s absence.

2. Summary of report by Licensing Manager / Officer.

3. Applicant / Representative (for eg Environmental Health, Police, Trading Standards) 
submissions on the application / call any witnesses. 
Any Questions for Applicant / Representative 
 Statutory Consultees?
 Licence holder?
 Officers?
 Members?

4. Statutory Consultees (for eg Police, Fire Service, Environmental Health) submissions 
on the application.  
Any questions for Statutory Consultees from
 Applicant / Representative?
 Licence holder?
 Officers?
 Members?

5. The Licence Holder’s submission on the application.  
Any questions for Licence Holder from
 Applicant / Representative?
 Statutory Consultee?
 Officers?
 Members?

6. Do Members require any clarification from the Licensing Manager / Officer?
If clarification given, questions on clarification only from:
 Applicant / Representative?
 Licence holder?
 Statutory Consultees?
 Members?

7. Summaries (if required)
 Licensing Manager / Officer summing up 
 Statutory Consultees summing up 
 Licence Holder summing up
 Applicant/Representative summing up 

8. Decision Making
 Members retire to discuss the application, propose and second a recommendation and 

vote on this. 
 They may take legal advice from the Legal Advisor.  The Legal Advisor will advise the 

Parties of any legal advice given to the sub-committee.  No other person may retire with 
the Sub-committee.  

 The decision is announced by the Chair giving full reasons for the decision, together with 
any conditions, which are to be attached to the grant of the licence or the reasons for a 
refusal of the application. 

Page 73

Agenda Annex



This page is intentionally left blank



 Report Template v28.0

Report to: Licensing Sub-Committee

Date of Meeting: 6th August 2015

Report Title: Application to review a Premises licence. Moscwichka, Pevensey 
road, St Leonards on Sea.

Report By: Mike Hepworth
Head of Environmental Services

Purpose of Report

To consider an application to review the Premises Licence as a result of 
representations received.
Responsible Authorities.  Two.      

Recommendation(s)

1. Members instructions requested.

Reasons for Recommendations

The Licensing Act 2003 requires a licensing sub committee to consider such 
applications when appropriate representations have been made. The decision reached 
at the sub committee can be subject to appeal at the Magistrates Court by any party to 
the hearing who is aggrieved by the decision.

Page 75

Agenda Item 7



Report Template v28.0

 

Introduction

1.0 Background

1. On 7th February 2005 the Licensing Act 2003 came into force for all local 
authorities, marking the practical commencement of the Government’s new liquor 
licensing regime.  

2. On the 23rd June 2015 Hastings Borough Council received an application for the 
review of an existing premises licence for Moscwichka, 1a Pevensey Road, St 
Leonards on Sea, TN38 0AJ from Mr Graham Wolstenholme, Senior Trading 
Standards Officer, East Sussex County Council Trading Standards Service, 
Eastbourne, made under Section 51 the Licensing Act 2003. (Attached at Appendix 
A).

3. Moscwichka has operated at 1a Pevensey Road for a number of years, the 
premises being licensed for the first time in April 2011, the premises licence holder 
has throughout that time been Jenya Dimitrova, her current address being Flat 2, 
Downsview, 1 Lascelles Terrace, Eastbourne, BN21 4BJ. (Attached map Appendix 
B).  

4. The premise currently holds a premises licence under the Licensing Act 2003. 
(Attached Appendix C).

5. The existing premises licence covers the use of the premises for the ' Off Sales ' 
supply by retail of Alcohol. 

6. It currently operates under the following trading hours;

 Sale of alcohol.             Monday to Saturday 10.00 - 22.00 hrs
                      Sunday 10.00 - 20.00 hrs
                   
The designated premise supervisor for the premises is also Jenya Dimitrova, she has 
been in that position since the issue of the licence in 2011.   

2.0 Application 

7. The grounds for review made by Mr Graham Wolstenholme are under the licensing 
objectives "The Prevention of Crime and Disorder" and "Public safety" I have 
considered the application and consider it valid and in line with the central 
government guidance issued on such matters. 

8. In their application for review, trading standards comment about a visit to the 
premises in November 2014, where illicit and counterfeit cigarettes were 
discovered and seized. He comments further on the discovery of other illicit and 
counterfeit cigarettes at other premises operated by the same company in both 
Eastbourne and Royal Tunbridge Wells, these being subject to separate review 
proceedings. As a result they are seeking the revocation of the premises licence.

Page 76



Report Template v28.0

9. When submitting an application for a review under the Licensing Act 2003 the 
applicant is required to send copies of the review application to the other 
responsible authorities listed under the Act and a copy to the premises licence 
holder, this has been done.

10. In addition, the licensing authority is required to place a copy of the notice on the 
premises concerned and the public notice board situated at the Town Hall this has 
been done, in addition the review notification has been placed on the Council 
website. These notices must remain in place for 28 days to allow further 
representations to be made.

11. An application for review cannot be considered by the Council's Licensing Sub-
Committee until the 28 day representation period has elapsed, in this case that 
ended at midnight on the 21st July 2015.

3.0     Consultation 

12. As a result of this consultation period, one further representation has been 
received, this is from Mr Trevor Scrase, Snr Licensing Officer, Hastings Borough 
Council. He comments on the application for review and gives a detailed history of 
his dealings with the company, he further comments on the lack of control by the 
license holder/DPS Mrs Dimitrova, highlighting her comments in interview with 
Trading Standards, he supports the request by trading standards for the licence to 
be revoked by the sub committee.( Attached appendix D)

 4.0 Legal Considerations

13. The Licensing Act 2003 is now the only process to licence and control premises for 
all forms of entertainment, late night refreshment and the sale of Alcohol.

14. The review process is laid down in statute and allows for representations to be 
made by specified groups of people provided they are relevant to one or more of 
the licensing objectives listed in the Act and are not considered frivolous, vexatious 
or repetitive. 

15. If a relevant representation is made by either a responsible authority or other party, 
a hearing must be held. 

16. The Home Office has issued guidance under Section 182 of the Licensing Act 
2003.  This guidance is provided to Licensing Authorities to assist them in carrying 
out their functions.

17. Hastings Borough Council has developed, published and reviewed its Statement of 
Licensing Policy as required by the Licensing Act 2003.  

18. All members of the Licensing Committee have been supplied with copies of the 
Official Government guidance and the Hastings Borough Council Statement of 
Licensing Policy.

19. Human rights considerations must be taken into account fully in balancing licensing 
issues, in particular, article 1 of the first protocol and article 8.  Article 1 relates to 
the protection of property and the peaceful enjoyment of possessions and property.  

Page 77



Report Template v28.0

Holding a justices licence would be considered a possession.  Article 8 relates to 
the right to respect for private and family life, home and correspondence.  These 
are however qualified rights and can be deprived of “in the public interest”.  
Interference is permissible if what is done:-

20. Has its basis in law;

21. Is necessary in a democratic society to fulfil a pressing need or pursue a legitimate 
aim;

22. Is proportionate to the aims being pursued; and, 

23. Is related to the prevention of crime; or, the protection of public order or health.

24.  The licence holder has a right of appeal to the Magistrates Court against any 
decisions made by the licensing Sub-Committee with respect to this application for 
review. 

5.0 Options

25. To modify the conditions of the licence.

26. To exclude a licensable activity from the scope of the licence.

27. To remove the designated premises supervisor.

28. To suspend the licence for a period not exceeding three months.

29. To revoke the licence.

Members are reminded they must give written reasons for their decision, to ensure that 
the appeal procedure can be progressed.

Wards Affected

Central St. Leonards

Policy Implications

Please identify if this report contains any implications for the following:

Equalities and Community Cohesiveness No
Crime and Fear of Crime (Section 17) Yes
Risk Management No
Environmental Issues No
Economic/Financial Implications No
Human Rights Act Yes
Organisational Consequences No
Local People’s Views No
Anti-Poverty No

Additional Information

Page 78



Report Template v28.0

Appendix A. Application for review.
Appendix B. Map of area.
Appendix C. Existing Licence.
Appendix D. Represention from Mr Scrase.

Officer to Contact

Bob Brown. Licensing Manager.
bbrown@hastings.gov.uk
01424 783249
     

Page 79



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 81



Page 82



Page 83



Page 84



Page 85



Page 86



Page 87



Page 88



Page 89



Page 90



Page 91



Page 92



Page 93



This page is intentionally left blank



PREMISES LICENCE

Premises licence number

Part 1 – Premises details

Licensing Act 2003

HOP50427

Postal address of premises, or if none, ordnance survey map reference or description 

MOSCWICHKA
1A PEVENSEY ROAD, 

Post Town  Post Code 
ST. LEONARDS ON SEA, EAST SUSSEX TN38 0JA

Telephone number 

Where the licence is time limited the dates 
NONE

Licensable activities authorised by the licence 

SUPPLY OF ALCOHOL

The times the licence authorises the carrying out of licensable activities 

 SUPPLY OF ALCOHOL MONDAY – SATURDAY 10.00 – 22.00

SUNDAY 10.00 – 20.00

The opening hours of the premises

MONDAY – SATURDAY 10.00 – 22.00

SUNDAY 10.00 – 20.00

Where the licence authorises supplies of alcohol whether these are on and/or off supplies 

SALE BY RETAIL OF ALCOHOL FOR CONSUMPTION OFF THE PREMISES 

Page 95



HASTINGS BOROUGH COUNCIL
Part 2 

Name, (registered) address, telephone number and email (where relevant) of holder of premises licence 

JENYA DIMITROVA
FLAT 2
DOWNSVIEW
1 LASCELLES TERRACE
EASTBOURNE
EAST SUSSEX
BN21 4BJ

(Change of premises licence holder address on 24th May 2013)
(Granted on 12th April 2011)

Registered number of holder, for example company number, charity number (where applicable)  

Name, address and telephone number of designated premises supervisor where the premises licence 
authorises for the supply of alcohol 

JENYA DIMITROVA
FLAT 2
DOWNSVIEW
1 LASCELLES TERRACE
EASTBOURNE
EAST SUSSEX
BN21 4BJ

(Change of address on 24th May 2013)

Personal licence number and issuing authority of personal licence held by designated premises supervisor 
where the premises licence authorises for the supply of alcohol
 
PERSONAL LICENCE NUMBER: 005940

ISSUING AUTHORITY: EASTBOURNE BOROUGH COUNCIL

Page 96



HASTINGS BOROUGH COUNCIL

Annex 1 – Mandatory Conditions 

1) If this premises licence authorises the supply/sale of alcohol, the following two conditions 

apply: 

(i) No supply of alcohol may be made under the premises licence at a time when there 

is no designated premises supervisor in respect of the premises licence, or at a time 

when the designated premises supervisor does not hold a personal licence or his 

personal licence is suspended. 

(ii) Every supply/sale of alcohol under the premises licence must be made or authorised 

by a person who holds a personal licence 

2) If this premises licence authorises the exhibition of films the admission of children to the 

exhibition of any film must be restricted in accordance with this section. 

Hastings Borough Council will expect the age restrictions of the British Board of Film 

Classification (BBFC) or authority designated under Section 4 of the Video Recordings Act 

1984 to be complied with.  Only in exceptional cases will variations of this general rule be 

granted by the Council and then only with the appropriate safeguards

3) If this premises licence includes a condition that at specified times one or more individuals 

must be at the premises to carry out a security activity (as defined by the Private Security 

Industry Act 2001) then such individuals must be licensed by the Security Industry Authority.  

Annex 1A – Additional mandatory licensing conditions

In relation to an existing or future relevant premises licence, the conditions specified for the purposes 
of section 19(4)(b) of the Act (mandatory conditions where licence authorises supply of alcohol for 
consumption on the premises).

In relation to an existing or future relevant club premises certificate, the conditions specified for the 
purposes of section 73A(c) of the Act (mandatory conditions relating to the supply of alcohol to 
members or guests, for consumption on the premises).

Paragraphs 1, 2 & 3 effective from 6th April 2010.

1.—(1) The responsible person shall take all reasonable steps to ensure that staff on relevant 
premises do not carry out, arrange or participate in any irresponsible promotions in relation to the 
premises.

Page 97



HASTINGS BOROUGH COUNCIL

Annex 1A – Additional mandatory licensing conditions - continued

(2) In this paragraph, an irresponsible promotion means any one or more of the following
activities, or substantially similar activities, carried on for the purpose of encouraging the sale or 
supply of alcohol for consumption on the premises in a manner which carries a significant risk of 
leading or contributing to crime and disorder, prejudice to public safety, public nuisance, or harm to 
children–

(a) games or other activities which require or encourage, or are designed to require or
encourage, individuals to–

(i) drink a quantity of alcohol within a time limit (other than to drink alcohol sold or
        supplied on the premises before the cessation of the period in which the responsible

        person is authorised to sell or supply alcohol), or

      (ii) drink as much alcohol as possible (whether within a time limit or otherwise);

(b) provision of unlimited or unspecified quantities of alcohol free or for a fixed or
discounted fee to the public or to a group defined by a particular characteristic (other than

any promotion or discount available to an individual in respect of alcohol for
consumption at a table meal, as defined in section 159 of the Act);

(c) provision of free or discounted alcohol or any other thing as a prize to encourage or
     reward the purchase and consumption of alcohol over a period of 24 hours or less;

(d) provision of free or discounted alcohol in relation to the viewing on the premises of a
     sporting event, where that provision is dependent on–

(i) the outcome of a race, competition or other event or process, or

(ii)       the likelihood of anything occurring or not occurring;

(e)  selling or supplying alcohol in association with promotional posters or flyers on, or in the vicinity 
of, the premises which can reasonably be considered to condone, encourage or glamorise anti-social 
behaviour or to refer to the effects of drunkenness in any favourable manner.

2. The responsible person shall ensure that no alcohol is dispensed directly by one person into the 
mouth of another (other than where that other person is unable to drink without assistance by reason 
of a disability).

3. The responsible person shall ensure that free tap water is provided on request to customers where 
it is reasonably available.

Paragraphs 4 & 5 – effective from 1st October 2010.

4.—(1) The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder shall ensure that an age 
verification policy applies to the premises in relation to the sale or supply of alcohol.

(2) The policy must require individuals who appear to the responsible person to be under 18 years of 
age (or such older age as may be specified in the policy) to produce on request, before being served 
alcohol, identification bearing their photograph, date of birth and a holographic mark.

Page 98



HASTINGS BOROUGH COUNCIL

Annex 1A – Additional mandatory licensing conditions - continued

5. The responsible person shall ensure that–

(a) where any of the following alcoholic drinks is sold or supplied for consumption on the premises 
(other than alcoholic drinks sold or supplied having been made up in advance ready for sale or 
supply in a securely closed container) it is available to customers in the following measures–

(i) beer or cider: ½ pint;

(ii) gin, rum, vodka or whisky: 25 ml or 35 ml; and

(iii) still wine in a glass: 125 ml; and

(b) customers are made aware of the availability of these measures.

Page 99



HASTINGS BOROUGH COUNCIL

Annex 2 – Conditions consistent with the operating schedule 

General
The premises is a well illuminated, open style, self service grocery store. 
High value alcohol / goods are located behind the counter at point of sale.
No money is left on the premises when closed.

The prevention of crime & disorder

Following the consultation process the Chief Officer requested the following conditions, 
which the applicant accepted. 

 A CCTV system has been installed on the premises although there is no mention of this on the 
schedule accompanying the application. Sussex Police would ask that consideration be given 
to the following to ensure the correct use/control of the CCTV apparatus:-

1. The system will incorporate a camera covering the entrance doors and the alcohol display 
areas and be capable of producing an image which is regarded as identification standard. (The 
precise positioning of the cameras has been agreed with Mr. Masters who has supplied Ms. 
Dimitrova, with a leaflet, ‘CCTV Essential Advice and Guidance for Users’).

2. The system will incorporate a recording facility and any recording shall be retained and stored 
in a secure manner for a minimum of 28 days and made available, subject to compliance with 
Data Protection legislation, to the police for inspection on request. 

3. The system will display on any recording, the correct time and date of the recording.

4. The system will be maintained and fully operational throughout the hours that the premises are 
open.

5. Train adequate members of suitable staff to use the CCTV system to its full potential thus 
ensuring that a member of staff is always available to replay footage and download material 
following an incident.

6. A ‘Challenge 25’ policy be adopted and only photographic ID such as a passport, driving 
licence, proof of age standards scheme (PASS) cards and citizen cards be acceptable. Staff 
are to be trained to request the appropriate ID from anyone who appears to be under the age 
of 25 years, and that alcoholic drinks are refused unless that ID is produced.

7. A refusals register shall be kept near the point of sale and all refusals shall be recorded. The 
DPS shall take responsibility for training staff in the use of the register and will regularly check 
to ensure entries are being made. The register will be made available to the police or licensing 
authority when requested.

8. The store adopt the ‘best practice’ as outlined in the amended Guidance issued under Section 
182 of The Licensing Act 2003 published in October 2010 in relation to written authorisation for 
staff who are not personal licence holders, to permit them to sell alcohol.  

Signs displaying age restriction will be clearly displayed.

There will be constant supervision within the store.

There is a ‘night light’ security light in the doorway.
Page 100



HASTINGS BOROUGH COUNCIL

Annex 2 – Conditions consistent with the operating schedule - continued

Public safety

A first aid station is maintained on the premises.

The prevention of public nuisance

The protection of children from harm

See provisions included under ‘Prevention of crime and disorder’. 

Page 101



HASTINGS BOROUGH COUNCIL

Annex 3 – Conditions attached after a hearing by the licensing authority 

Nil.

Page 102



HASTINGS BOROUGH COUNCIL

Annex 4 – Plans  

Page 103



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 105



Page 106



Page 107



Page 108



Page 109



Page 110



Page 111



Page 112



Page 113



Page 114



Page 115



Page 116



Page 117



Page 118



Page 119



Page 120



Page 121



Page 122


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the meeting held on  26 May and 8 June 2015
	Minutes
	$$MDocPackPublic (08.06.15)
	Minutes


	 
	6 Application for a premises licence: Grand Elektra, 53-57 Robertson Street, Hastings
	Appendix A - Application for a Premises Licence - Grand Elektra
	Appendix B - Map of area, Grand Elektra
	Appendix C - Police representation & Environmental report - Grand Elektra
	Appendix D - Letters of support - Grand Elektra

	 
	7 Application to review a premises licence: Moscwichka, 1A Pevensey Road, St. Leonards on Sea
	Appendix A - Application for the Review of Premises Licence - Moscwichka
	Appendix B - Map of area, Moscwichka
	Appendix C - Existing Premises Licence - Moscwichka
	Appendix D - Representation from Mr Scrase - Moscwichka


